THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

The Honorable H. W. Funderburk, Jr., Administrative Law Judge

Case No. 2015-002535

RECEIVED
FEB 25 2016
SC Court of Appeals

Melissa Spalt Respondent,

v.

South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles and
South Carolina Department of Public Safety Appellants.

Of Whom the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles is Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF THE APPELLANT

FRANK L. VALENTA, JR., SC Bar # 5682
General Counsel
PHILIP S. PORTER, SC Bar #4526
Deputy General Counsel
BRANDY A. DUNCAN, SC Bar #72052
South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles
10311 Wilson Boulevard
Post Office Box 1498

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- 1) THE DECEMBER 1, 2015 FINAL ORDER AND ORDER OF REMAND ISSUED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT IS IMMEDIATELY APPEALABLE TO THIS COURT.
- 2) THE HEARING OFFICER PROPERLY DISMISSED RESPONDENT'S CHALLENGE TO HER IMPLIED CONSENT SUSPENSION.
- 3) THE HEARING OFFICER DID NOT ERROR BY DISMISSING THE CASE WITHOUT HOLDING A HEARING.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This matter comes before the Court of Appeals pursuant to the appeal of the South Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles (hereinafter, "SCDMV" or "DMV"), who seeks review of the December 1, 2015 Final Order and Order of Remand from the Administrative Law Court (hereinafter, "ALC") which remanded for a hearing before the Office of Motor Vehicles Hearings (hereinafter, "OMVH") Respondent Spalt's challenge to an implied consent suspension. The Appellant, SCDMV seeks to have the ALC's Final Order and Order of Remand overturned and the OMVH Order of Dismissal issued August 12, 2015 reinstated in full.

Respondent Spalt was arrested on April 5, 2015 for an offense arising out of an act alleged to have been committed while she was driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or a combination of alcohol and drugs (R. pp. 127-128). Upon refusal to submit to a breath sample, Respondent was found to be in violation of S.C. Code §56-5-2950, and the arresting officer issued a Notice of Suspension form pursuant to S.C. Code §56-5-2951. *Id.* Respondent timely requested a contested case hearing on April 10, 2015. *Id.*

On April 14, 2015, the OMVH e-mailed a Notice of Hearing to all parties for a

hearing scheduled for June 23, 2015 (R. pp. 122-126). This Notice of Hearing was sent again to Respondent Spalt's Counsel only on June 12, 2015 (R. p. 121). On Thursday, June 18, 2015, Respondent requested a continuance of the hearing scheduled for Tuesday, June 23, 2015 due to a conflicting Court appearance her Counsel had in the Magistrate's Court (R. pp. 112-115).¹ The conflicting Magistrate's Court appearance had been noticed to Respondent's Counsel on May 19, 2015 (R. p. 115). On June 24, 2015, the OMVH e-mailed an Order of Continuance and Notice of Hearing to all parties (R. pp. 110-111). This Order rescheduled the hearing for August 11, 2015. *Id.*

On Friday, August 7, 2015 at 12:30 p.m., Respondent requested a continuance of the hearing scheduled for Tuesday, August 11, 2015 due to a conflicting Court appearance her Counsel had in the Magistrate's Court (R. pp. 104-109).² The conflicting Magistrate's Court appearance had been noticed to Respondent's Counsel on July 15, 2015 (R. p. 109).³ On Sunday, August 9, 2015, the Hearing Officer denied the request for continuance of the August 11, 2015 hearing (R. p. 103). On Monday, August 10, 2015 at 8:02 a.m., the OMVH e-mailed Respondent's Counsel the denial of the request for continuance issued by the Hearing Officer the day before (R. p. 102).⁴ Respondent's Counsel responded the same day at 1:28 p.m. and asked the Hearing Officer to reconsider

¹ The DMV, a party to this case, was not copied on this request and was not aware the request had been made until the June 24, 2015 Order of Continuance and Notice of Hearing was issued by the OMVH.

² The DMV, a party to this case, was not copied on this request and was not aware the request had been made until the August 12, 2015 Order of Dismissal was issued by the OMVH.

³ Although Respondent stated DMV "alleges this conflict became apparent immediately upon the July 15, 2015 this is just not true," an August 10, 2015 e-mail from Respondent's Counsel's office to the OMVH clearly stated Respondent's Counsel "were notified of a scheduled Jury Trial on July 15th." R. pp. 10 and 102.

⁴ DMV, a party to this case, was not copied on this e-mail from the OMVH and, it appears, Trooper R. D. Grubbs, the arresting officer, was also not copied on this e-mail from the OMVH.

the request for continuance.⁵ *Id.* On Monday, August 10, 2015 at 4:41 p.m., Respondent's Counsel filed a second Motion for Continuance (R. pp. 90-100).⁶ On Monday, August 10, 2015 at 5:02 p.m., Trooper R. D. Grubbs did e-mail Frances Inabinet of the OMVH and Respondent's Counsel's paralegal stating "No objections" to Respondent's request for a continuance (R. p. 90).⁷

On August 12, 2015, the Hearing Officer issued an Order of Dismissal ruling that Respondent "did not follow the requirement of Rule 601 or the procedure for requesting a continuance at the OMVH pursuant to Rule 10 (B)," that Respondent's request for a continuance had been denied, the "parties were notified of the denial on the morning of Monday, August 10, 2015," and that Respondent nor her Counsel appeared at the hearing (R. pp. 56-57). This decision was served on all the parties via e-mail on August 13, 2015 (R. pp. 58-59). On August 17, 2015, Respondent filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the Order of Dismissal (R. pp. 62-81). Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration was primarily based on two (2) points: 1) that Appellant's second Motion for Continuance e-mailed at 4:41 p.m. on Monday, August 10, 2015 had not been ruled on; and 2) that "attorneys with court conflicts must serve the continuance upon all parties... As required by the rules all parties of record were notified of the request for a continuance." (R. pp. 63-65).⁸ On September 11, 2015, Respondent filed her Notice of Appeal with the ALC

⁵ This request for reconsideration was not copied to DMV or Trooper R. D. Grubbs, and, in fact, was sent directly to the Hearing Officer as well as the Hearing Officer's Scheduling Assistant. All prior e-mails from Respondent's Counsel had been sent only to the Hearing Officer's Scheduling Assistant. Further, the DMV, only became aware of this request for reconsideration when the Record on Appeal was filed in the ALC by the OMVH on or about October 7, 2015.

⁶ The DMV, a party to this case, was not copied on this request and was not aware the request had been made until the August 12, 2015 Order of Dismissal was issued by the OMVH.

⁷ The DMV, a party to this case, was not copied on this e-mail and was still unaware of the requested continuance of the August 11, 2015 hearing.

⁸ Despite being listed by the Appellant in the caption to this Motion as a Petitioner, the DMV was not copied on this Motion and was not even aware the Motion had been made until the September 11, 2015

(R. pp. 40-55).⁹ On September 16, 2015, the Hearing Officer issued an Order Dismissing Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration (R. p. 60). This Order was served on the parties on the same date (R. p. 61).

The ALC appeal was assigned to the Honorable H. W. Funderburk, Jr. on September 16, 2015 (R. p. 39). The Record on Appeal was filed on or about October 2, 2015 (R. pp. 38 and 133). On October 29, 2015, Memorandum on Appeal was filed by Respondent Spalt (R. pp. 30-35). On November 16, 2015, DMV filed its Brief in the ALC (R. pp. 15-29). On November 23, 2015, Respondent Spalt filed her Reply Brief (R. pp. 9-14). On December 1, 2015, the ALC issued Final Order and Order of Remand (R. pp. 2-7). On December 2, 2015, prior to receiving the ALC's Final Order and Order of Remand, Appellant mailed the ALC a letter supplementing its Brief with two (2) additional cases (R. p. 8). Also, on December 2, 2015, the OMVH scheduled a hearing for this case pursuant to the ALC's December 1, 2015 Order of Remand (R. p. 134).

On December 10, 2015, DMV filed a Notice of Appeal to this Court. This Notice of Appeal was served on Respondent's Counsel, the Clerk for the ALC, and Yolanda Williams of the OMVH on December 8, 2015.

As of the filing of this Brief, Respondent Spalt has still not served DMV with copies of the following:

- 1) request for continuance on June 18, 2015;

Notice of Appeal was received by DMV on September 15, 2015. Further, DMV did not receive any copy of the Motion for Reconsideration until the ALC Record on Appeal was served on DMV by the OMVH on October 7, 2015.

⁹ DMV assumes Respondent's ALC appeal focused on the OMVH's Order of Dismissal dated August 12, 2015 and issued on August 13, 2015. DMV bases this assumption on Respondent's statement in her Notice of Appeal that she "gives notice of her Appeal from the Final Order and Decision of the [OMVH] issued on August 12, 2015..." DMV notes that no Final Order was attached to Respondent's ALC Notice of Appeal as required by Rule 33, SCALCR, but that the only order issued in this case on August 12, 2015, as far as DMV is aware, is the Order of Dismissal dated August 12, 2015 and issued on August 13, 2015.

- 2) request for continuance on August 7, 2015;
- 3) request for reconsideration of request for continuance on August 10, 2015 at 1:28 p.m.;
- 4) request for continuance dated August 10, 2015 and e-mailed to OMVH at 4:41 p.m.; and
- 5) Motion for Reconsideration dated August 17, 2015.¹⁰

Failure of Respondent Spalt to serve these documents on DMV has continued despite DMV pointing out this failure to serve in DMV's ALC Brief. Further, it is clear that Respondent is and was aware that DMV is a party to this action as DMV was served with Respondent's ALC Notice of Appeal (R. p. 43) and Respondent listed DMV as a Petitioner in Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration (R. p. 63).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The scope of judicial review in cases such as this is limited by the Administrative Procedures Act, S.C. Code §1-23-380(A)(6).

(A) A party who has exhausted all administrative remedies available within the agency and who is aggrieved by a final decision in a contested case is entitled to judicial review....

(6) The court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of the evidence on questions of fact. The court may affirm the decision of the agency or remand the case for further proceedings. The court may reverse or modify the decision if substantial rights of the appellant have been prejudiced because the administrative findings, inferences, conclusions or decisions are:

- (a) In violation of constitutional or statutory provisions;
- (b) In excess of the statutory authority of the agency;
- (c) Made upon unlawful procedure;
- (d) Affected by other error of law;

¹⁰ The Certificate of Service by Mail reflects that the Motion for Reconsideration was only mailed to the Hearing Officer, Trooper R. D. Grubbs, and Trooper McWhorter (R. p. 66).

- (e) Clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative and substantial evidence on the whole record; or
- (f) Arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of discretion or clearly unwarranted exercise of discretion.

In *Lark v. Bi-Lo, Inc.*, 276 S.C. 130, 276 S.E.2d 304 (1981), our Supreme Court set out the standard of evidentiary review under the South Carolina Administrative Procedure Act:

[Section 1-23-380(g)(5)] specifically states: "The Court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the agency as to the weight of evidence on questions of fact." In addition, the statute states the decision under appeal must be "clearly erroneous" in view of the substantial evidence on the whole record.

We, therefore, caution the Bench and Bar as to the limitations upon the application of the "substantial evidence" rules in reviewing the decision of administrative agencies. As stated in *Dickinson-Tidewater, Inc. v. Supervisor of Assess.*, 273 Md. 245, 329 A.2d 18, 25, the substantial evidence test "need not and must not be either judicial fact-finding or substitution of judicial judgment for agency judgment"; and a judgment upon which reasonable men might differ will not be set aside.

The Court further noted that:

The substantial evidence rule... means that we will not overturn a finding of fact by an administrative agency "unless there is no reasonable probability that the facts could be as related by a witness upon whose testimony the finding was based." (Citation omitted.)

See also *Schudel v. South Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission*, 276 S.C. 138, 276 S.E.2d 308 (1981); *Fast Stops, Inc. v. Ingram*, 276 S.C. 593, 281 S.E.2d 18 (1981).

An appeal from action of an administrative agency must be sustained if supported by substantial evidence. *Hamm v. American Telephone & Telegraph Co.*, 302 S.C. 211, 394 S.E.2d 842 (1990); *Lark v. Bi Lo, Inc.*, *supra*. In *Lark*, our Supreme Court quoted

Consolo v. Federal Maritime Commission, 383 U.S. 611, 16 L.Ed.2d 131, 86 S.Ct. 1118 (1966), to define substantial evidence:

We have defined "substantial evidence" as "such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a conclusion."... "It must be enough to justify, if the trial were to a jury, a refusal to direct a verdict when the conclusion sought to be drawn from it is one of fact for the jury..." This is something less than the weight of the evidence, and the possibility of drawing two inconsistent conclusions from the evidence does not prevent an administrative agency's finding from being supported by substantial evidence.

Lark, 276 S.C. at 136, 276 S.E.2d at 311. *See, also, Dorman v. DHEC*, 565 S.E.2d 119, 350 S.C. 159 (Ct. App. 2002); *Hamm v. South Carolina Public Service Commission and Wild Dunes Utilities, Inc.*, 311 S.C. 295, 422 S.E.2d 118 (1992).

A court cannot weigh the evidence and substitute its judgment for that of the agency upon a question as to which there is room for a difference of intelligent opinion. *Dorman v. DHEC*, *supra*; *Hamm v. American Telephone & Telegraph Co.*, *supra*; *Chemical Leaman Tank Lines v. South Carolina Public Service Commission*, 258 S.C. 518, 189 S.E.2d 296 (1972). The limited substantial evidence standard of review is intended only to assure that the agency's action is properly supported and that, therefore, no abuse of delegated authority occurred. *See Fowler v. Lewis*, 260 S.C. 54, 194 S.E.2d 191 (1973).

On review of the acts or orders of administrative agencies, the courts will presume, among other things, that the agency action is regular and correct, and that the orders and decisions of the agency are valid and reasonable. 73A C.J.S. *Public Administrative Law and Procedure* Section 220(a) (1983). Therefore, the burden is on the Petitioner to show convincingly that the order of the agency is without evidentiary support or is arbitrary or capricious as a matter of law. *Hamm v. South Carolina Public*

Service Commission, 294 S.C. 320, 364 S.E.2d 455 (1988).

ARGUMENT

- 1) THE DECEMBER 1, 2015 FINAL ORDER AND ORDER OF REMAND ISSUED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT IS IMMEDIATELY APPEALABLE TO THIS COURT.

S.C. Code §14-3-330 sets forth those cases that may be considered by the appellate courts of South Carolina. One of the types of cases that may be considered by the appellate courts of this state are those where “An order affecting a substantial right made in an action when such order...(b) grants or refuses a new trial...” The order appealed in this case is just such an order. The Final Order and Order of Remand issued by the ALC on December 1, 2015 explicitly remands this case back to the OMVH “for a hearing on the merits.” This case was already scheduled for a hearing once before and Respondent, nor her Counsel appeared at the hearing. Therefore, the ALC’s Order of Remand has, essentially, granted Respondent a new “trial” via the new hearing. As held in the recently decided case *Morrow v. Fundamental Long-Term Care Holdings, LLC*, 412 S.C. 534, 539, 773 S.E.2d 144, 146, to prevent Appellant DMV “from appealing the order immediately would encourage piecemeal litigation and limit [DMV’s] appellate remedies.” See also, *Knight v. Johnson*, 244 S.C. 70, 135 S.E.2d 372 (1964) (An order of the trial court granting or refusing a new trial, when based solely on an error of law, is subject to review by the Supreme Court); and *Daughty v. Northwestern R. Co. of South Carolina*, 92 S.C. 361, 75 S.E. 553 (1912) (This statute does not undertake to make an order granting a new trial appealable, when it is based upon questions of fact; but it can review orders granting new trials when based upon error of law.). For these reasons, the

ALC's Final Order and Order of Remand issued on December 1, 2015 is immediately appealable.

2) THE HEARING OFFICER PROPERLY DISMISSED RESPONDENT'S CHALLENGE TO HER IMPLIED CONSENT SUSPENSION.

Rule 601, SCACR states:

(a) Order of Priority as Between Tribunals. In the event an attorney of record is called to appear simultaneously in actions pending in two or more tribunals of this State, the following list shall establish the priority of his obligations to those tribunals:

- (1) The Supreme Court.
- (2) The Court of Appeals.
- (3) The Commission on Judicial Conduct, the Commission on Lawyer Conduct, and the Committee on Character and Fitness.
- (4) The Circuit Court - General Sessions.
- (5) The Family Court - merits hearings involving child abuse, child neglect and termination of parental rights upon approval of the Chief Judge for Administrative Purposes for the Family Court and notice to the Chief Judge for Administrative Purposes for the Circuit Court five days prior to the term of the Circuit Court.
- (6) The Circuit Court - Common Pleas, Jury Term.
- (7) The Family Court – all cases not referenced in (5) above.
- (8) The Circuit Court - Common Pleas, Non-Jury Term.
- (9) The Administrative Law Court.
- (10) Alternative Dispute Resolution Conferences conducted pursuant to the SC Court-Annexed ADR Rules.
- (11) The Probate Court.
- (12) **Magistrates and Municipal Courts.**
- (13) **Other Administrative Bodies or Officials.**

When a party or his counsel is in the process of a hearing or trial before a tribunal, he may not be required to appear in another tribunal having greater priority unless the tribunal with less priority grants a recess or continuance for that purpose.

(b) Conflict With Federal Courts. When times set for appearances before state and federal courts are in conflict, appearance shall have such priority as is appropriate. Courts and counsel shall have the obligation to adjust schedules to accord with the spirit of comity between the state and federal courts.

(c) Attorney to Give Notice. An attorney who cannot make a scheduled appearance because of the priority established by paragraph (a) of this rule shall notify the affected tribunals as soon as the conflict becomes apparent.

Emphasis added. In this case, the conflicting Magistrate's Court appearance had been noticed to Respondent's Counsel on July 15, 2015 (R. pp. 102 and 109). Despite the July 15, 2015 notice, Respondent's Counsel did not notify the OMVH or Hearing Officer of the anticipated conflict until Friday, August 7, 2015 at 12:30 p.m., three (3) weeks and one (1) day after the conflict was apparent to Respondent's Counsel. Rule 601(c), SCACR requires attorneys to notify affected tribunals as soon as a conflict becomes apparent. Respondent's Counsel did not do so. For these reasons, the Hearing Officer's finding that "counsel did not follow the requirement of Rule 601" was appropriate and demonstrates no abuse of discretion.

In South Carolina, the grant or denial of a continuance is within the sound discretion of the Hearing Officer and is reviewable on appeal only when an abuse of discretion appears from the record. *Plyler v. Burns*, 373 S.C. 637, 650, 647 S.E.2d 188, 195 (2007) ("The grant or denial of a continuance is within the sound discretion of the trial judge and is reviewable on appeal only when an abuse of discretion appears from the record."); *Newman v. Old West, Inc., et al.*, 286 S.C. 394, 334 S.E.2d 275 (1985) (The trial judge's decision to grant or deny a continuance is a matter within his sound discretion.); and *State v. Lytchfield*, 230 S.C. 405, 95 S.E.2d 857 (1957) ("The granting or refusal of a motion for continuance is within the discretion of the trial judge and his disposition of such a motion will not be reversed on appeal unless it is shown that there was an abuse of discretion to the prejudice of appellant. A multitude of cases to this effect will be found in 7 S.C.Dig., Criminal Law, k586 et seq., p. 504 et seq. and

supplement. Review of them shows that reversals of refusal of continuance are about as rare as the proverbial hens' teeth.”). Thus, with no evidence of an abuse of discretion, the Hearing Officer’s ruling must stand.

Furthermore, Rule 10, OMVH Rules states:

- A. Content and Filing. All motions shall be written, contain the caption of the case and the title of the motion, the docket number and the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the person or representative filing the motion. The motion shall state with specificity the grounds for relief and the relief sought. All motions pertaining to the hearing shall be filed not later than ten days before the hearing date. Any party may file a written response to the motion within ten days unless the time is extended or shortened by the hearing officer.
- B. Motions for Continuance. A motion for continuance shall be in writing, state with specificity the reasons therefor, and be signed by the requesting party or representative. **All motions must be filed at least two business days prior to the scheduled hearing. Motions filed less than two business days prior to the scheduled hearing will be granted only for good cause shown. Motions not served upon all parties will not be granted except in an emergency.** Attorneys with court conflicts must include documentation of the call to court with the motion and the documentation must include the case name, the court, the county, the docket number, the presiding judge’s name and telephone number, and the date the attorney received notice of the conflicting court appearance. **Attorneys must notify the Office as soon as possible when a court conflict occurs.** Law enforcement officers with court conflicts must include documentation of the call to court with the motion and the documentation must include the case name, the court, the county, the docket number, the presiding judge’s name and telephone number, and the date the officer received notice of the conflicting court appearance. Law enforcement officers with training conflicts must submit documentation that sets out the date, place, and time of training, and the date the officer received notice of the conflicting training. Officers must notify the Office as soon as possible when a conflict occurs.

Emphasis added. Respondent’s request for continuance on June 18, 2015; request for continuance on August 7, 2015; request for reconsideration of request for continuance on August 10, 2015 at 1:28 p.m.; and request for continuance dated August 10, 2015 and e-

mailed to OMVH at 4:41 p.m. did not comply with Rule 10(A), OMVH Rules. Each of these requests was sent simply as a letter or e-mail to the OMVH, the Hearing Officer, or both. Specifically, none of these requests were written as a motion, none contained the caption of the case, some did not contain the e-mail address of the person or representative filing the motion, and none were signed by an attorney. Rather each of these were signed by "Tori Ford" for Attorney Michael Laubshire or were sent via e-mail from "Victoria Ford, Paralegal." Therefore, Respondent's Counsel's attempts to file a "motion for continuance" were, in actuality, not motions. These attempts were merely letters requesting a continuance. While a letter may comply with the requirements of Rule 601, SCACR, it does not comply with the requirements of Rule 10, OMVH Rules.

The failure to comply with the requirements of Rule 10, OMVH Rules is further demonstrated by the explicit requirements of section (B) of Rule 10, OMVH Rules. Specifically, the requirement that "All motions must be filed at least two business days prior to the scheduled hearing." Assuming for argument's sake that Respondent's Counsel's August 7, 2015 letter is considered a motion, it still did not comply with the requirement that it be filed at least two (2) business dates prior to the scheduled hearing. This hearing was scheduled for August 11, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. In August 2015, the 8th and 9th of August were Saturday and Sunday, respectively, and not business days. Therefore, any motions for the August 11, 2015 hearing had to be filed with the OMVH by no later than 9:00 a.m. on Friday, August 7, 2015. Respondent's Counsel's August 7, 2015 letter was not sent to the OMVH until 12:30 p.m. on August 7, 2015, clearly past the two business day deadline. The Rule 10(B), OMVH Rules goes on to discuss how motions submitted less than two business days prior to the scheduled hearing will be evaluated:

“Motions filed less than two business days prior to the scheduled hearing will be granted only for good cause shown.” Emphasis added. Obviously, the Hearing Officer did not find good cause to grant the requested continuance. In fact, the Hearing Officer took pains to point out in the Order of Dismissal Respondent’s Counsel’s failure to request the continuance for three (3) weeks and one (1) day after knowing there was a court conflict. Moreover, Rule 10(B), OMVH Rules specifically states, “Attorneys must notify the Office as soon as possible when a court conflict occurs.” Clearly, based on the over three (3) week delay, Respondent’s Counsel did not comply with this requirement of Rule 10, OMVH Rules.

In addition to the reasons specifically stated by the Hearing Officer in his Order of Dismissal, Respondent’s Counsel’s requests also failed to comply with other requirements of Rule 10(B), OMVH Rules. Specifically, Rule 10(B), OMVH Rules requires:

Attorneys with court conflicts must include documentation of the call to court with the motion and the documentation must include the case name, the court, the county, the docket number, the presiding judge’s name and telephone number, and the date the attorney received notice of the conflicting court appearance.

Respondent’s Counsel’s June 18, 2015 request did not include the docket number, the presiding judge’s name and telephone number, or the date the attorney received notice of the conflicting court appearance.¹¹ Additionally and significantly, Rule 10(B), OMVH Rules also states “Motions not served upon all parties will not be granted except in an emergency.” In this case, Respondent’s Counsel failed to serve DMV with:

¹¹ It did contain the date the notice was sent to Appellant’s Counsel from the Solicitor’s Office and later the date of receipt was confirmed by Respondent’s Counsel to the OMVH (R. p. 102).

- 1) the request for continuance on June 18, 2015;^{12 13}
- 2) the request for continuance on August 7, 2015;¹⁴
- 3) the request for reconsideration of request for continuance on August 10, 2015 at 1:28 p.m.;¹⁵
- 4) the request for continuance dated August 10, 2015 and e-mailed to OMVH at 4:41 p.m.; and¹⁶
- 5) the Motion for Reconsideration dated August 17, 2015.^{17 18}

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