THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

---

APPEAL FROM SOUTH CAROLINA  
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

The Honorable H.W. Funderburk, Jr., Administrative Law Judge

---

Case No. 2015-002535

---

Melissa Spalt,

RECEIVED

Respondent, MAR 04 2016

v.

SC Court of Appeals

South Carolina Department of  
Motor Vehicle and South  
Carolina Department of Public  
Safety,  
Of whom South Carolina  
Department of Motor Vehicles  
is the Appellant.

Appellant.

Of Whom the South Carolina  
Department of Motor Vehicles  
is Appellant

---

FINAL BRIEF OF THE RESPONDENT

---

Michael Laubshire, Esq.  
455 St. Andrews Road, Ste E-1  
Columbia, SC 29210  
(803) 708-4755

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

## ARGUMENTS

I. THE DECEMBER 1, 2015 FINAL ORDER AND ORDER OF REMAND ISSUED BY THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT IS NOT IMMEDIATELY APPEALABLE TO THIS COURT.

South Carolina Code Ann. §14-8-200 sets forth those cases that may be considered by the Court of Appeals in South Carolina. Petitioners reliance upon S.C. Code Ann §14-3-330 is misplaced as it specifically deals with the appellate jurisdiction of the South Carolina Supreme Court not the South Carolina Court of Appeals. South Carolina Court of Appeals jurisdiction is set and limited by S.C. Code §14-8-200.

Although Petitioner alleges there was a hearing, the hearing officer did not make any record of any hearing in this matter other than to issue a form order dismissing the case. The final order of the Administrative Law Court does not order a “new hearing” it orders “a hearing on the merits.” Since there has been no hearing on the merits an appeal to the Court of Appeals is interlocutory.

In support of its position that this case is immediately appealable to this court Petitioner cites, Morrow v. Fundamental Long-Term Care Holdings, LLC, 412 S.C. 534, 539, 773 S.E.2n 144, 146 which has nothing to do with the jurisdiction of this Court, in this case, rather it deals with the exclusive jurisdiction of the South Carolina Supreme Court pursuant to S.C. Code §14-3-330 in an interlocutory appeal of a motion to bifurcate a trial.

Also in support of its position Petitioner cites, Knight v. Johnson, 244 S.C. 70, 135 S.E.2<sup>nd</sup> 372 (1964) which was a case in the circuit court that was tried to

conclusion and was appealed to the Supreme Court of South Carolina. This case is also easily distinguishable because in this matter there has been no hearing, there is no record of a hearing other than a summary order, and this case also deals with an appeal in the exclusive jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of South Carolina, not the Court of Appeals. Similarly, Daughty v. Northwestern R. Co. of South Carolina, 92 S.C. 361, 75 S.E. 553 (1912) is also a case that deals specifically with the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of South Carolina not the Court of Appeals.

Finally, the Petitioner is in no manner precluded from appealing a subsequent, and truly final, order. Since there has been no actual hearing on the merits there is substantial right or prejudice being affected. S.C. Code §14-3-330(2)(a), specifically deals with interlocutory appeals to the Supreme Court which allows an appeal from an interlocutory order when the order in effect determines the action and prevents a judgment from which an appeal might be taken or discontinues the action. The order in this case neither discontinues their action nor prevents a judgment from which an appeal may be taken. Petitioner has not filed this appeal in the South Carolina Supreme Court, therefore, the statute and cases cited to support her position that this matter is immediately appealable to the Supreme Court are not relevant since this matter was filed in the South Carolina Court of Appeals.

If this matter is immediately appealable to the Supreme Court under §14-3-330, Petitioner has filed this appeal in the wrong court and has missed the filing deadline. Based upon the foregoing the Respondent requests this matter be dismissed and remanded for a full hearing on the merits.

II. THE HEARING OFFICER ERRED IN DISMISSING RESPONDENT'S CHALLENGE TO HER IMPLIED CONSENT SUSPENSION.

Rule 601 (c) specifically states "An attorney who cannot make a scheduled appearance because of the priority established by paragraph (a) of this rule shall notify the affected tribunals as soon as the conflict becomes apparent." In this specific case, August 7, 2015 was the soonest the conflict became apparent. It has been Respondent's attorney's experience that cases in Magistrate Court are often continued for many reasons the week of trial. For example, the officers are unavailable; the prosecutor is not ready to try the case, evidentiary issues, just to name a few. Therefore, in the best interest of judicial economy it is reasonable to wait until it is confirmed that the trial is going to take place before requesting continuances in other courts. Upon confirmation that the jury trial which was scheduled in Richland County Central Court would in fact go forward on August 11, 2015, is when the request for a continuance was sent.

The Rule also lists the order of priority between tribunals, which clearly states that Magistrate and Municipal Courts take priority over other Administrative Bodies or Officials. In which case, Respondent's counsel could not be in two places at once, his obligation, under the rule, was to be at the scheduled jury trial rather than at a hearing in the Office of Motor Vehicles.

Additionally, the request for a continuance was made as soon as the conflict became apparent as the rule requires. Not only was the request made two (2) business days prior to the scheduled hearing but was emailed to all parties who were notified of the original hearing date which was sent by the scheduling assistant. Rule 10,

OMVH Rules states that all requests for continuances must be made at least two business days prior to the scheduled hearing, it does not state that it must be forty-eight (48) hours prior, in which case this requirement was also met. The request was sent in letter form, the same format that has been used between Respondent and the Office of Motor Vehicle Hearings in every continuance needed in all previous cases including this specific case without any prior rebukes. The request for continuance was sent immediately as it was confirmed that the scheduled jury trial would in fact go forward and that it would not be rescheduled for any reason. The hearing officer had more than good cause to grant the continuance for the sole purpose that the conflict was due to a jury trial, not an administrative hearing.

Furthermore, the request for a continuance was not marked as an emergency because the situation was not really an emergency. This was a simple request for a continuance, with good cause shown, submitted to the Office of Motor Vehicles on Friday, August 7, for a hearing set to take place the following Tuesday, August 11, it was not filed at the last minute as Petitioner states. There was more than enough time, in corroboration with the Rule, to have the hearing continued. Further, all parties to the case were notified of the request. Trooper Grubbs replied "No objections." The Hearing Officer denied the request for no reason other than stating this case has been continued once. There is no Rule of Court that states there is a limit on how many continuances or new hearings are scheduled when there are sufficient grounds and good cause shown in order to comply with Rule 601. The request was made in a reasonable time with good cause having been shown and the

Hearing Officer erred by denying the request. The Hearing Officer's denial of the request for a continuance was an abuse of discretion and prejudicial to the Respondent since she has been denied her right to a hearing on the merits.

In support of its position the Petitioner states the following cases. Brockman v. South Carolina Dept. of Motor Vehicles and Mauldin Police Dept., 2014 WL 2895374, 13-ALJ-21-0049-AP (SCALC 2014); Chadwick Dale Martin v. S.C. Dept. of Motor Vehicles, 2007 WL 4184375 (2007); Joseph W. Hiller v. S.C. Dept. of Labor, Licensing, and Regulation, 1999 WL 51899 (1999); S.C. Department of Revenue v. Edwin Alewin, 1997 WL 816208 (1997) while each of these cases are easily distinguishable, South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 268(d)(2) specifically states opinions and unpublished orders have no precedential value and should not be cited except in proceedings in which they are directly involved. All of the cases listed above are opinions and unpublished orders and have no precedential value in this appeal.

Respondent requests that any and all cases cited by Petitioner not in compliance with South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 268(d)(2) not be considered by this Court and be stricken from the record.

All parties listed on the e-mail of the Original Notice of Hearing were copied on all communications between the Office of Motor Vehicle Hearings and Respondent, which has been the normal course of business in dealing with the Office of Motor Vehicle Hearings. Based on the forgoing the Respondent requests this matter be dismissed and remanded for a full hearing on the merits.

III. THE HEARING OFFICER ERRED BY DISMISSING THE CASE WITHOUT HOLDING A HEARING.

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the Office of Motor Vehicle Hearings, Rule 15, the hearing officer shall give a brief opening statement describing the nature of the proceeding as well as the taking of evidence that is presented. In the Transcript, it was duly noted that the hearing officer did not go on the record. Therefore, the arresting officer failed to meet his burden of proof and the hearing officer erred in dismissing the case and upholding the suspension. If anything since the officer failed to put any evidence on the record this matter should have been dismissed if at all in favor of the Respondent.

In support of its position Petitioner cites, John McGeary v. S.C. Dept. of Motor Vehicles and S.C. Department of Public Safety, 2011 WL 7119316 (2011), McGeary, as cited by the Petitioner, was dismissed by this Court for a preservation issue which has nothing to do with the issues in this matter. S.C. Dept. of Motor Vehicles v. Pitts, 06-ALJ-21-0592 and S.C. Dept. of Motor Vehicles v. Alana Marie Erwin, 06-ALJ-21-059. However, South Carolina Appellate Court Rule 268(d)(2) specifically states opinions and unpublished orders have no precedential value and should not be cited except in proceedings in which they are directly involved. All of the cases listed above are opinions and unpublished orders and have no precedential value in this matter.

Respondent is unable to address the cases other than McGeary, which is available but is an unreported opinion and has no presidential value as is stated on the

opinion itself. The other cases cited by the Petitioner are unreported and unavailable to the Respondent.